

Alberta Health Services

PCS Manual 5.67

Provincial Manual

3/10/2015



Contents

Introduction
Access & Navigation5
Logging into Meditech5
Accessing PCS6
PCS Navigation7
PCS Bottom Right Tool Bar7
PCS Right Side Tool Bar7
PCS Bottom Toolbar8
PCS Colour System9
Status Board9
Status Bar Tool Bar10
Accessing the Status Board10
Sorting the Status Board11
My List
Add client to My List12
Remove Client from My List14
Interventions15
Types of Interventions15
Adding Interventions to your worklist15
Duplicate Intervention
Intervention List Columns
Intervention:
Text/Ord:

Alberta Health Services

PCS Manual 5.67

	Status:	21
	Editing a Status:	21
	Src: (Source):	22
	Frequency:	23
	History:	25
	Protocol:	26
	Assoc Data:	27
Doc	umenting Interventions	27
Т	oolbars	27
	Intervention Toolbar:	27
	Document Toolbar	28
τ	ypes of Responses	29
D	ocumenting on a Single Intervention	29
D	ocument on Multiple Interventions	30
R	ecall	31
Ir	nserting/Discontinuing Occurrences	32
D	ocument Spreadsheet	33
	Document on a Single Intervention using Document Spreadsheet:	34
	Document on Multiple Interventions using Document Spreadsheet	34
	To Edit/ Delete in Document Spreadsheet	35
	Insert Occurrence in spreadsheet	35
	Discontinue Occurrence in spreadsheet	35
	Reactivate Occurrence in spreadsheet	35
	Additional Functions:	36
D	ocumenting for a Different Time	36



PCS Manual 5.67

Process Plan/Care Plan	36
Downtime	37
Allergies	37
EMR	37



Introduction



PCS is one of many MEDITECH (Medical Information Technology) applications.

Documentation is the primary function of the PCS module. It is the module where the interdisciplinary team charts client care information which flows to the Enterprise Medical Record (EMR). The Enterprise Medical Record (EMR) collects, stores, and displays all clinical data for clients within a health care organization. AHS Meditech's EMR is shared across the rural zones with some provincial exceptions.

The PCS Module allows your health care organization to do the following:

- customize plans of care for individual patients
- document and process interventions associated with plans of care
- record on-line notes about a patient's progress
- include readings from monitors as documented interventions
- generate statistics that analyze delivery of patient care, efficiency of care
- delivery, adequacy of staffing, and adequacy of staffing projections
- generate reports such as profiles and flow sheets

PCS was designed as an interdisciplinary documentation system and provides opportunity to enhance interdisciplinary practice.



Interdisciplinary Practice "is designed to promote the active participation of each discipline in patient care. It enhances patient and family centered goals and values, provides mechanisms for continuous communication among caregivers, and optimizes staff participation in clinical decision making within and across disciplines fostering respect for disciplinary contributions of all professionals" (Health Canada, 2001).

Access & Navigation

There are two methods for accessing Meditech:

- 1. Citrix Access via web link
- 2. Three tier/Desktop icon access

If you are unsure of which way to access Meditech in your area, speak to your support representative.

Logging into Meditech

1. Selecting the Meditech icon



Meditech 567 either via Citrix or on the desktop.

2. The Meditech login screen will display.



- 3. Enter your Meditech name/number in 'User' prompt. Press Enter.
- 4. Enter your **password**. Press Enter.
- 5. Under HCIS:
 - a. Press the F9 (Look-Up) button and you will see the HCIS List Screen.



Search		
Mnemonic	Name	Ring
ARH.TEST5.67	Aspen Regional TEST HCIS	ABA.TEST5.67
CHR.TEST5.67	Chinook TEST HCIS	ABA.TEST5.67
DTH.TEST5.67	David Thompson TEST HCIS	ABA.TEST5.67
ECH.TEST5.67	East Central TEST HCIS	ABA.TEST5.67
NLH.TEST5.67	Northern Lights TEST HCIS	ABA.TEST5.67
PCH.TEST5.67	Peace Country TEST HCIS	ABA.TEST5.67
PHR.TEST5.67	Palliser Health TEST HCIS	ABA.TEST5.67

b. Depending on your access, you may have several choices displayed. Choose the appropriate HCIS for your location or appropriate TEST instance.

NOTE:

Some TEST instances do not allow access using personalized username/number. To access TEST, you will have to log in with a generic access name. Contact support for assistance.

Accessing PCS

1. Choose your location:



- 2. The available Meditech module list will appear. Choose the PCS Module from the list.
- 3. Choose Status Board



	Nursing EMR Order Entry Registration PCS	•	PCS
Applications PCS *Palliser TEST 5.67* ►	Pharmacy CWS ORM ITS Private Tracker Desktop Material Management Change Password/Pin	>	Status Board Regulatory Reports

NOTE:

What displays will vary depending on the user configuration.

4. The PCS Status Board will now display.

PCS Navigation

Along the bottom and right hand side of the Status Board screen are toolbars. Based on your user configuration the information contained within each client's record, various buttons will be highlighted or grayed out.

PCS Bottom Right Tool Bar



Question Mark: Will take you directly to Patient Care System Online Help.
Links: Will have the ability to link to external sites when it becomes available.
Lock: Will lock all Meditech windows and minimize them to the bottom toolbar of your computer. To return to the Patient Care System click the PCS button at the bottom of your computer screen and the Sign on Window will reappear. Enter your Password to continue.
Circle Arrows: Will refresh the screen that is open.

Return: Returns you to the previous screen **Save:** Files/saves your documentation

PCS Right Side Tool Bar

The toolbar to the right of the Status Board remains constant throughout the PCS screens and is described below:



	Status Board: Displays a list of clients on My List or a Location and
Status Board 🛛 🕅	relevant information specific to the particular status board selected (i.e.
Interventions 🛛 🎯	
Outcomes 🏼 🏼 💋	
MAR Ca	Interventions: Displays the selected client's Intervention List.
Transfusions 🛛 📎	Outcomes: Opens the client's Document Outcomes screen.
Special Panel 🛛 🕠	MAR: Not currently in use
Assign Care Providers	Transfusions: Not currently in use
Notes	Special Panel: Opens the EMR Special Panel. Composed of several
Process Plans	different categories with access to test results. These are grouped
Schedule	according to body systems.
EMR	Assign Care Providers: Used for assigning clients to other care providers'
Orders	or your own list. Status boards are loaded in Assign Care Provider.
Allergies	Notes: Allows the user to enter client notes pertaining to information not
Reconcile Meds	recorded under interventions
Exit PCS	Process Plan: Opens the Client's Plan of Care screen
	Schedule: Allows you to view and or print of list of pending or overdue
	interventions. This is not currently used.
	EMR: Enterprise Medical Record
	Orders: Opens Provider Order Management (limited use in AHS)
	Allergies: Opens the Allergy/Adverse reaction screen & Patient Data
	screen for entering height and weight
	Reconcile Meds: Not currently using
	Exit PCS: Exits the Patient Care System

Note: Only those functions, which are highlighted as Black writing, may be accessed. If the word is written in light blue, it is unavailable to you as a choice on that screen.

PCS Bottom Toolbar

The toolbar at the bottom of the Status Board screen changes depending on the screen you enter through the routines listed on the right-sided toolbar. From the Status Board, the following describes the toolbar at the bottom from left to right:

My List Locations Find Patient Acknowledge	Select Status Board	Remove From List	Print
--	------------------------	---------------------	-------

My List: Allows you to view a Status Board of the clients on your worklist that have been added. **Locations:** Displays Locations for the facility. Once you select the Location a list of clients at that Location will display.

Find Patient: Allows you to search for a client by one of the appropriate search methods. **Acknowledge:** Not currently in use everywhere

Select Status Board: Allows you to select from a list of predefined alternative Status Boards. **Remove from List**: Allows you to remove one or more clients from My List.

Print: Prints your Status Board display with your client work list.



PCS Color System

While using PCS, you will notice that information displays in a variety of colors to cue the user to various data. The following is a key that describes this system:

Grey Background: Click for more information

Green Background: Data is not yet filed or values are within normal range

Pink/Red Background: Overdue items or values outside of normal range

Blue or a White Background: Indicates the user's selection

Yellow Background: Name alert. Client's displayed on status board with same name to cue user to be aware of risk of documenting on wrong person.

Magenta Words: New Information or unfiled data.

Status Board

The Status Board is a customized table of data designed for specific clinical purposes. The Status Board that you see may be different from that of another Care Provider. When entering PCS the automatic default is the Status Board defined for your user group. The data that will display may include, but is not limited to items such as Results, Interventions, and data of last documented Interventions.

The Status Board is the routine in which you will launch all documentation activities to be carried out for the clients you are responsible for. These routines include activities such as:

- Processing the Client's Plan of Care
- Standard Documentation
- Spreadsheet Documentation
- Patient Care Notes
- EMR Access

The appearance of the Status Board will vary depending upon your care provider type and the department in which you work. It will display your current client caseload and key information pertaining to your clients. You may have access to different status boards depending on where



you work. Select "Select Status Board" at the bottom of your screen to access one of your other choices.

Ht	ster, Cinderella 195 cm / Wt: 78 kg Alergy/AdvReac:	854: 2.04 m2 8M1: 20 5	kg/m2	My List		VQ0000626/00 1 East Mad	/ UQOOG kenzie P	lace PQEL134-4	0003797		
		Diagnosis:	Res	Last BM	BP-S	Total Intak	02	Intervention	Dely .	Status Board	0
	Client Name	Physidan	Mor	BM Interve	8P-D	Total Outp	Diet	Isolation	Beha		-
-	Date of Arrival on . Dwarf, Happy	Resuscitation Stat.	Bra	BM Comment Routine Med	PUISe 00	Cath Insert	Gluc	Aggression	Wour	Theorem .	
	07/01/2009	Support/Comfort Me		Resident had .	88		8,3			HEAR .	
	PQEL131-A	Abheimer's disease		88/06/2009	210	500		1000		T-stict sugar	
	Dwarf,Bashful	Labossiere, Joseph		Suppository	80	500			-	Terrist Tainel	4
	12/02/2009	Full Resuscitation	11	Suppository	80					Assign Care Prov	date.
	PQEL131-6	Allergies, asthma		11/08/2009	210			0600	1	hourse and a state	1000
	Dwarf,Sneezy	Jang,Jason		Suppository	80					Incident Maine	
	14/01/2009	All but CPR	3	she had a pr	80					Schedule	
	PQEL132-A	Chronic constipation		88/06/2009	210			1000		DHL.	_
	Dwarf,Grumpy	Easwara Murthi,Marg.		Suppository	80				navet	Diders-	
	15/01/2009	Support/Comfort Me		recognized bl.a	00				and an	Adampie	
	PQEL133-A	Insomnia		18/07/2009	210			1000	1	Germanie Wette	
	Dwarf,Sleepy	Wahab, Nazneem No		Suppository	80					Printed States in concernment of the	_
	21/02/2009	Full Resuscitation		small amount.	80					ENTPOS	-
	PQEL134-A	Fatigue, Bunions	2 · · · ·	22/05/2009	121	3	1.	1000	1		
	Stater,Cinderella	Wagg,James P		Suppositors	80						
	21/04/2009	All but CPR	4	Thore was a	85						
	PQEL135-A	ansiety		10/07/2009	145			1000	- 8		
	Bird, Twenty	Saayman Marius Jak	-	Suppository	101						
	11/02/2009	Full Resuscitation		Above supp	10t						
1	PQEL138-A	Frontal lube dementian		06/05/2009				1900			
	Cat,Sylverster	Abdolhady Mohammed	6	Suppository					-		y come
•									*	2 @ 3	
		List Locations Find I		Law and the second seco	Solart	- Remove	Prin	1	1000	CONFLICT T	States of the

Status Bar Tool Bar

The toolbar to the right of the Status Board remains constant throughout the PCS Routines and is described on Page 8.

Accessing the Status Board

- If a blank desktop displays you have the option to assign yourself clients, or (depending on your site process) have someone assign clients to you. This process is not widely used. This option can be used for clients that are being tracked for MDS or identify a specific client or client groups for a program such as rehab areas.
- For access to the entire client list use the Location button.
- When clients have been assigned, your list will display with their names already included.
- It is the user's responsibility to keep this list up to date. As clients are discharged for whatever reason, including death, the client's name will not automatically be removed from this list.



Sorting the Status Board

To re-sort the data on the Status Board by another criterion, click on any of the column headers. For example, if you want to view the clients alphabetically, click on the Client Name in the column header. The status board is refreshed with the list displaying alphabetically and a small arrow appears in the Resident Name box to indicate this is how the list is sorted.

If you would like to sort by Room-Bed, as displayed below, click on the Room-Bed box. If sorting by Interventions, items that have a scheduled date and time are sorted initially in chronological order, starting with the next or overdue Intervention. To view the data in reverse chronological order, click on the column header again.

Data Data		0.00		Desides		T	That Design a sup to
Room-Bed 🔹	Diagnosis	GCD	Morse	Results	BP	Temp	IV Present
Patient Name	Isolation	Notification	САМ	Orders		SpO2	
Physician	ADOD	Next Sche	Pain Score		Pulse	02/L	
LMHA4WM040-2 S(orted By Ro	om/Bed as	cending				
UDEL PYRE, PIERCE	N						
Drew,Peter 🕨		0600 - Hourl					
LMHA4WM230-1							
udelWATER,ANITA							
Well,Bea 🔹 🕨	Other p	ertinent inf	ormation				
LMHA4WM240-1							
UDEL HALE, JUSTIN							
Well,Bea 🔹 🕨							
		R2					
UDADM SCARYMOCH				Ack			
		0600 - Hourl					

An arrow in the column header is to show you if it is an ascending sort-pointing downward, or descending sort-pointing upward.

Arrow in the row: makes you aware of other pertinent information. E.g. Physician name will also contain: name/type, phone/fax.

My List

In some instances, the client's on their list will be automatically set-up as per assigned room numbers. For others, the client's listed on their list may need to be managed on a daily basis if the caregiver is responsible for managing their own caseload or if they are responsible for managing other's caseloads.

The **My List** function is primarily used by acute care, allied health, chronic disease, or for any clinician who is not assigned to a Location of patients.



Add client to My List

Primary Method:

1. From the Status Board, click Locations at the bottom tool bar

My List	Locations	Find Patient	Acknowledge	Messages	Select Status Board	Remove From List	Print
	_						

- 2. Select the location you would like to add client's to your list from. A Status Board with that locations client's will appear.
- 3. Select the patients you would like to add to your list by adding check marks



4. Click the Add to My List button on the toolbar.

My List	Locations	Find Patient	Acknowledge	Messages	Select Status Board	Add To User List	Add To My List	Print
---------	-----------	--------------	-------------	----------	------------------------	---------------------	-------------------	-------

5. Click My List in the toolbar to go back to your list with the new client's added.

Alternative Method:

This is not the recommended method of adding client's to My List. It should only be used when the primary method is not possible.

- 1. From the Status Board, at the bottom of your screen click "Find Patient".
- 2. Enter the patient's full or partial name (Last name, First name) or their Medical Record number. Click on **"OK"** to display selection of names.

PCS Manual 5.67



			Identify a Me	dical Record			
	Name						
	Health	Care Number					
	Medica	al Record Numl	ber				
	Accou	nt Number					
	Date o	of Birth					
	Sex						
	Mothe	r's Name					
						014	
						ok ∢	
My List	Locations	Find Patient	Acknowledge	Select Status Board	Add To User List	Add To My List	Print

- 3. Select appropriate name, by clicking on name with mouse if more than one choice appears.
- 4. Once you select your client, the select location screen will appear.





- 5. Click to left of Client name, on a visit with a **Green dot (current visit)** and a **Picture of hospital bed** for current admission visit. **NOTE:** the Location is displayed; it should indicate your Facility.
- 6. Click Add to My List.
- 7. Click on **My List** to return to your own client list. These new clients should appear.

Remove Client from My List

There are two options to remove clients from My List.

Assign Care Providers Screen:

- 1. Click Assign Care Providers from the Status Board
- 2. Select the client or room number.
- 3. Press delete or backspace.
- 4. If appropriate, continue selecting and deleting other clients.
- 5. Click Save when complete. You will be returned to the Status Board and those patients will be removed.

From your Status Board/Client List:

- 1. Click on the far left column of the client name. This will place a check mark in that column. Do this for all clients to be removed.
- 2. Click "**Remove from List**" from the menu on the right. Click on My List to refresh your work list.

iister, Cinderella t: 195 cm / Wt: 78 kg Alergy/AdvReac:	85A: 2.04 m2 6MI: 20.5	kg/m2	MyList		VQ0000026/09 1 Eest Mac		face POEL134-/	0003797		
	Diagnosis:	R.es	Last BM	BP-S	Total Intak	02	Intervention	Daily	Status Board	0
Client Name Date of Arrival on .	Physician Resuscitation Stat	Mor	BM Interve	BP-D	Total Outp Cath Insert	Diet	Isolation	Beha	Status eoard	
Date of Artival on . Dwarf, Happy	Kadodia Nasreen	Вга	BM Comment Routine Medi	Puise 80	cath pisert.	Gluc	Aggression	Would	Ch.ermann	
07/01/2009	Support/Comfort Me		Resident had.	66		8.3			And	
PQEL131-A	Alpheimer's disease		08/06/2009	210	500	-	1000	_	Transfiguent	
Dwarf,8ashful	Labossiere, Joseph .		Suppository	80	500		1000 D 100		Rendal Farmer	
12/02/2009	Full Resuscitation	11	Suppository	80				12	Assign Care Prov	idere
PQEL131-8	Allergies, asthma		11/08/2009	210		-	0600	-	Assign Care Prov	inder a
Owarf, Sneezy	Jang,Jason .		Suppository	80					Property Photos	
14/01/2009	All but CPR	3	she had a pr	80					Schedule	
PQEL132-A	Chronic constipation .	-	08/06/2009	210			1000		CARD AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AN	_
Dwarf,Grumpy	Easwara Murthi, Manj. a		Suppository	80				have t	Orthese	
15/01/2009	Support/Comfort Me		recognized bl	80				and the state of the	Afreciuses	
PQEL133-A	trisomnia a	1	10/07/2009	210			1000		Renze in Body	
Dwarf,Sleepy	Wahab,Nazneem Noa		Suppository	80					Ext PCS	_
21/02/2009	Full Resuscitation		small amount.	80					ENCPUS	_
PQEL134-A	Fatigue, Bunions	1	22/05/2009	121			1000			
Sister,Cinderella	WaggJames P	8	Suppository	80						
21/04/2009	All but CPR	4	There was a	85						
PQEL135-A	anxioty .	() ()	10/07/2009	145			1000	1		
Bird, Tweety	Saayman, Marius Jak	1	Suppository	101						
11/02/2009	Full Resuscitation	1	Above supp	101				0		
PQEL136-A	Frontal lobe dementias		06/05/2009				1000			
Cat_Sylverster	Abdolhady, Mohammed	1	Suppository					-	-	-
				11				2	2 2 3	3



Interventions

Interventions in PCS describe the tasks done while providing care to a client as well as our assessment(s) of a client. For example, vital signs or wound care.

Interventions must be added from your worklist before you can document on them.

Specific interventions are assigned to the appropriate disciplines and will only be available for documentation on that care provider's work list. In order to document on a client an individual must be defined as a care provider in the PCS Care Provider Dictionary.

Types of Interventions

Single:

• A single Assessment attached to a single Intervention e.g. Blood Glucose Test Record

Set:

- A group of related Interventions that have been associated together because they are similar for client care. e.g. Palliative Care Set Displays the Assessments within the set individually on the worklist
- Displays with SET in the description

Standard of Care (SOC):

- Pre-defined group of mandatory Interventions for specific client groups regardless of medical diagnosis or problem. e.g. all LTC clients have a defined Admission SOC, Home Care clients may have a different SOC.
- Displays the Assessments within the SOC individually on the worklist

Grouped:

- Comprised of multiple assessments attached to a single Intervention
- Displays as one Intervention e.g. Interdisciplinary Conference or Past Medical History
- May document on applicable assessments from within the group

Adding Interventions to your Worklist

From the Document Routine you have the ability to add additional Interventions, Intervention Set or SOCs. Once Interventions are added to your worklist you then have the ability to document on them.

Note: Acute care adds their interventions and SOC using a different method. See the PCS Care Planning Manual for more information.

1. From the Status Board highlight the Client that you would like to add Interventions on.



2. Click Interventions button on the right hand side panel of your screen.

Status Board	
Interventions	• Oj
Outcomes	17
eMAR	C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C
IV Spreadsheet	EØ
Transfusions	۲
Special Panel	-v}-

3. If there are Interventions already added to your Intervention worklist for this patient, this screen will display.

			19 Mar	It Time 2015 0834 M Schafer				
Intervention	Text/ Ord	Status	Src	Frequency	History	Next Scheduled •	Prtcl	Assoc Data
Comfort Rounds		А	PS	08,10,12,14,		1000 1200		
Shift Care Record		А	PS	07,15,23		1500 2300		
Physical Assessment - Acute		А	PS	07,15,23		1500 2300		
Vital Signs		А	PS	07,15,23		1500 2300		•

Use the **Add Intervention** button at the bottom of the screen to add more Interventions.

Document	Document	Link	Edit	Select	Add	Delete	Undo
Document	Spreadsheet	Note	Status	Status	Intervention	Intervention	ondo

4. If you have no yet added any interventions the Select Interventions screen will appear. Leave **Both** highlighted so you have access to all **Sets**, **Interventions** and **SOCs**.





- a. You may add Interventions/Sets/SOCs:
- b. In the **Search for** field begin typing the name of the Intervention/Set/SOC. As you type, the system will display a drop down list of choices. The more you type the smaller the list becomes, narrowing your choices.
- c. Once you see the Intervention you want to add, click in the box to the left of its description to insert a checkmark.

C Intervention Multi-Select			2
Search for: woun		1 selected of 1	
	Wound and Dressing Complex Assessment	Interver Sets/SO Both	
	Add and Add and Clear Clear Cheds	Close	

- d. There are now 2 options:
 - 1. <u>Add and Close</u>: will add the Interventions to your list and take you back to the Intervention worklist
 - 2. Add and Continue: allows additional Interventions to be selected

Tip: Remember to insert a checkmark in front of the Intervention's you would like to add

Important: If the item is an Intervention Set it will be followed by (SET) in the description and if it is a Standard of Care the description will be followed by (SOC).

CDM: Diabetes (SET)

- CDM: Diabetes and Pregnancy (SET)
- CDM: Diabetes: Insulin Pump (SET)
- Diabetes Home Equipment/Supplies
- Teach: Diabetes Hyperglycemia
- e. To see the details of an Intervention Set or SOC, highlight the SET or SOC and click **View Set** at the bottom of the screen.



CDM: Diabet	es (SET) es and Pregnancy (SET)	
🌚 Software by M	EDITECH	×
View Set/SOC		
	Nutrition: Adult Health Status Medical History: Pregnancy History Medical History: Birth Activity Assessment Diabetes: Meal Plan Pre/ Pregnancy & Lactation Assessment	
		Close X

- f. Once all intersventions have been selected, click Add and Close
- g. This returns you to the Interventions screen; the added Interventions will appear in magenta until saved.
- h. Prior to Saving:
 - 1. Review your Interventions list for:
 - a. Duplicates
 - b. Wrong choice
 - c. Interventions that you do not require at this time from within a SET
 - 2. Remove unwanted new Interventions:
 - a. Insert checkmark in box to left of any Intervention you want to remove
 - b. Click on the **Delete Intervention** button on the bottom tool bar. This will remove the selected Intervention from the Interventions list.
 - 3. Click **Save** in the bottom right toolbar

Note: Once an Intervention has been saved, the option to delete an Intervention will not be accessible. A warning message may appear if you attempt to leave the Interventions list with unsaved data.

Acute Care sites do not have the ability to delete interventions.

Duplicate Intervention

1. If **DUP** appears in magenta in the Status column this is a visual warning that this is a duplicate Intervention.

Comfort Rounds	А	PS	08,10,12,14,	1000 1200	
Shift Care Record	Α	PS	07,15,23	1500 2300	
Vital Signs	А	PS	07,15,23	1500 2300	F
Comfort Rounds	A	DUP			



- 2. It may be already on your list or it may have been changed to another **Status** and not visible.
 - a. If Visible:
 - i. Highlight the duplicate Intervention
 - ii. Click Delete Intervention
 - b. If Not Visible:
 - i. Select Status
 - ii. Checkmark all Statuses
 - iii. Click OK to display Status of all Interventions
 - iv. Find the inactive/hold intervention which is duplicate
 - v. Reactivate the original Intervention by changing the status back to active
 - vi. Delete the duplicate
 - vii. Click Save

Intervention	Text/ Ord	Status	Src	Frequency	History	Next Schedule	ed 🔻	Prtcl	Asso Data
Hourly Rounds Nightly		Α	SC	06	9 days	16/03 06	00		
CAM: Confusion Assessment Method		Α	SC	07,15,23	9 days	16/03 07	00		
Shift Care Record		Α	SC	07,15,23	9 days	16/03 07	00		
Physical Assessment - Acute		Α	SC	07,15,23	9 days	16/03 07	00		
Respiratory Assessme 😵 Software by ME	DITECH					× 17	00		•
Comfort Rounds		Cala	ct Statı				00		
Pertinent Information		Sele							
Inpatient Discharge Pr		~	Active						
Early Screening for Dis			Comple						
Goals of Care Designa			Dischar					•	
Vital Signs			Inactiv	-					×
Post-Op Flow Sheet			Stoppe	a	<u> </u>				
PRN Medication Admin		Clear			Cancel	ок]-			
Minibag/Blood Infusion		~	30	FRIN	JJ uays				
Infusion Assessment		Α	SC	PRN	35 days				
Pain Management - Basic		Α	SC	PRN	35 days				F
Elimination Assessment		Α	SC	PRN	35 days				+
EN Feeding Tube /Maintenance		Α	CP	PRN	35 days				
Wound and Dressing Simple Assessment		Α	SC	PRN	29 days				×
Braden Scale	Q	Α	SC	QWEDNESDAY	35 days			•	
Client Care Communication		Α	SC	PRN	35 days				
Teach: Infection Prevention and Control		Α	SC	PRN					
		_		_					
Document	_ink	Edit	S	elect Ad	d I	Delete		Indo	

Intervention List Columns

Intervention	Text/ Ord	Status	Src	Frequency	History	Next Scheduled v	Prtcl	Assoc Data
--------------	--------------	--------	-----	-----------	---------	--------------------------------	-------	---------------

Intervention: description of the Intervention added. New/Added interventions will be magenta until saved.



Text/Ord: A bubble will display if there is any instructions or client-specific information associated to the Intervention. You must read and acknowledge (OK) the information before you can proceed to document. This text is customizable for the client (you can edit the information to suit the individual client). For example, you may add extra information such as: "Likes to have extra cushion under his knees when in bed."

Note: Any text entered into the Text/Ord information is not viewable in the EMR.

To **View** information contained within the Text bubble:

- 1. Select the Intervention.
- 2. Click on bubble and a Text box will open like the one above, displaying information associated to that Intervention.

Intervention	Text/ Ord	Status	Src	Frequency	History	Next Scheduled •	Prtcl	Assoc Data
Hourly Rounds Nightly	9	Α	PS	06	140 days	21/02 0600		
Hourly Rounds Nightly		A	80	04		21/02 0600		
Hourly Rounds Nightly		- 🕲 V	-	_	×	21/02 0600		
Shift Care Record		-	0	Text)		21/02 0700		
Shift Care Record		Test tex	t info			21/02 0700		
Shift Care Record						21/02 0700		
Physical Assessment - Acute						21/02 0700		
Physical Assessment - Acute						21/02 0700		
Physical Assessment - Acute		ОК <i< td=""><td>F12> C</td><td>ancel Edit Tex</td><td>t</td><td>21/02 0700</td><td></td><td></td></i<>	F12> C	ancel Edit Tex	t	21/02 0700		
Comfort Rounds						21/02 0800		

To **Edit** information contained within the Text bubble:

- 1. Select the Intervention.
- 2. Click on bubble and a Text box will open like the one above, displaying information associated to that Intervention.
- 3. Select the **Edit Text** button. A Popup screen displays, which allows editing of the text within that bubble.



- 4. You may now delete or add any text that is appropriate to your client by free typing
- 5. Once complete select OK.



To Add a Text Bubble

- 1. Click in the Text/Ord column (gray area) of the Intervention
- 2. A Popup screen will appear
- 3. Add any text that is appropriate to your client by typing information in
- 4. Click OK
- 5. The bubble will appear in the Text/Ord column in magenta until saved
- 6. Click Save once you are finished

<u>Status:</u> displays the Status of an Intervention.

Status	Describes Intervention	Example
ACTIVE (A)	Are current care delivery responsibilities	Taking Vital Signs
COMPLETE (C)	No longer necessary in the current phrase of care, but which appear on the plan or Intervention list to show a true picture of the clients progress	Interventions completed
HOLD (H)	Have been temporarily stopped and can be reactivated by changing the status on the Intervention List	Interventions while a client is on pass
INACTIVE (I)	May or may not be required for a client at this time	A task that is no longer required at this time but may be reactivated in future
STOPPED (S)	Is an automatic stop using the Frequency function. Can be reactivated through the Process Plan Edit Frequency function or by setting the frequency to a future date and it automatically becomes Active again.	MDS Tracking Tool frequency
CANCELED (X)	Were entered in Error Once an Intervention is cancelled it can no longer be reactivated. Only available to certain users.	Wrong Intervention inadvertently placed on a client, or Intervention saved that is not required.

Editing a Status:

If an Intervention has been documented on and is no longer required, the Status of that Intervention may be changed.



To Edit a Status of a Single Intervention

Comfort Rounds	Α	PS	08,10,12,14,	1000 1200	
Vital Signs	А	PS	07,15,23	1500 2300	×
Post-Op Flow Sheet	С	PS			

- 1. Click in the Status column (gray area) of the Intervention that you want to change
- 2. Popup screen called New Status appears
- 3. Click on the Status that you would like to change the Intervention to. i.e. Active, Complete, Hold, etc.
- 4. The Intervention will now have the Status that you have chosen and will appear in a magenta color (as in the example)
- 5. When you click the Save button in the bottom right corner, the letter in the status column will turn black, the Intervention may or may not disappear depending on what you have selected as Statuses to display on your Intervention Worklist.

To Edit a Status of multiple Interventions at one time:

This can only be done if changing all the Interventions selected to the same status.

~	Comfort Rounds	А	PS	08,10,12,14,		1000 1200		
~	Shift Care Record	Α	PS	07,15,23		1500 2300		
~	Vital Signs	А	PS	07,15,23		1500 2300		۰.
~	Post-Op Flow Sheet	А	PS					
	Document Docume Spreadsł	 Link Note	Edit Statu		Add Intervent	Deleta	- I II	ndo

- 1. Click to the left of all the Interventions that you want to change; a checkmark will appear.
- 2. Select Edit Status on the bottom toolbar
- 3. New Status popup screen appears
- 4. Select the new status
- 5. The new status and will display in magenta until saved
- 6. Click Save.

Src: (Source): Displays the origin of Intervention.

CP – Care Plan	Via the Care Plan or Critical Path
	functions. (Process Plan of Care
	Routine)
PS – Patient Care System	Via the PCS Worklist using the Add
	Intervention menu option.
SC – Standard of Care	Via the Enter/Edit Standard of Care
	Function (Process Plan of Care
	Routine).



Frequency: Displays the intervals at which Interventions must be completed. Some Interventions have a pre-set frequency. All frequencies may be edited.

To Add a new Frequency:

🍪 Softv	🆑 Software by MEDITECH											
Frequency - Shift Care Record												
		Sta 06/10/20		Freque: 07,15,2								
	Add Nev	w Edit	Delete		Cancel 🗙	OK V						

- 1. Click in the frequency field of the Intervention. The Frequency screen will display
- 2. Click Add New
- 3. Select the Date the frequency is to start (click forward or back arrows to adjust date)
- 4. Select the Time the frequency is to start
- 5. Enter the desired Frequency using the Meditech Standard System formats (see next page)

1	Softwa	are by	MEDITI	ECH								X
-						Frequency	- Shift (Care Record	t			
						Star		Frequenc	y] _			
1						24/02/2019	5 0931	*New*				
		Date						Freque	ency			
_ 🔍	24/	02/20	15 🤇	•) I								
		Time										
		09:31										
i -	7	8	9									
2	4	5	6									
:	1	2	з									
1	+	0	T/N									
				Pr	rev	Next Lo	okup			Manage Schedule	Cancel 🗙	ОК

- 6. Click **OK**
- 7. The **Add New** function can be used to automatically enter a single or series of frequencies for one Intervention.
 - a. Using the Add New routine enter the frequency or series of frequencies.
 - b. Using the Add new routine enter the desired stop **Date** and **Time** leaving the **Frequency** field blank.

Edit a Frequency:

- 1. Click in the frequency field of the Intervention
- 2. Frequency screen will display
- 3. Highlight the frequency to be edited.
- 4. Click Edit
- 5. Select the Date the frequency is to start
- 6. Select the Time the frequency is to start
- 7. Enter the desired Frequency and click **OK**



Note: If experiencing issues editing a frequency, try deleting all frequencies and entering new.

Delete a Frequency:

- 1. Click in the frequency field of the Intervention
- 2. Frequency screen will display
- 3. Highlight the frequency to be deleted.
- 4. Select Delete
- 5. A confirmation screen will appear
- 6. Select Yes or No
- 7. The Frequency screen reappears
- 8. Select Add New, Edit, Delete or Close
- 9. The edit will appear in the Frequency column in magenta until saved.

Note: If the Date and Time you have selected for this frequency to start is in the future, the frequency cell will remain blank until that Date and/or Time has been reached.

Meditech Standard System Formats

Format/Description	Example	Meaning
QnnD : Every nn days	Q2D	Beginning at the specified start date and every 2 days thereafter
QnnH: Every n hours	Q3H	Beginning at the specified start time and every 3 hours thereafter
QnnM: Every n minutes	Q30M	Every 30 minutes
HH or HHMM: Times of day in standard 24-hour format. Multiple time entries separated by commas	08,1230,17	8:00AM, 12:30PM and 5:00PM
A sequence of two-letter abbreviations for days of the week, no spacing between abbreviations.	MoWeFr	Monday, Wednesday, and Friday
You can use more than one format in a statement, by joining them with the @ symbol	Q4D@08,12, 16,20	Every four days at 8 AM, 12 noon, 4 PM and 8 PM



History:

Displays the interval since the last documentation

ĺ	Intervention	Text/ Ord	Status	Src	Frequency	History 🔻	Next Scheduled	Prtcl	Assoc Data
	Vital Signs		A	PS	on admission	140 days	1		•
	Height and Weight		A	PS	on admission	103 days		×	•
	Morse Fall Scale 🕺 🎗		A	PS	on admission	102 mins		×	

- 1. Click in the History field of the Intervention.
- 2. A documentation audit trail will display
- 3. Edits or Corrections to documentation are done here

To Edit a saved Assessment:

If you are the original documenter and the predetermined cut-off date has not been reached, an assessment can be edited.

- 1. Click History for an Intervention within the Intervention list.
- 2. Click on the arrow in the Assessment column for the documentation to be edited. The assessment will open.

	Date Done	Time Done	Done by	Entered	Entered by	Assessment	Signatures	Туре	Note Link	
	06/10/2014	1516	Valerie A Woods	06/10/2014 1516	Valerie A Woods			Document		
	06/10/2014	1511	Valerie A Woods	06/10/2014 1511	Valerie A Woods	S		Add		

- 3. Make appropriate edits or corrections.
- 4. Click Return in bottom right toolbar
- 5. Edit will display in magenta in the Type column
- 6. The original documentation date and time will remain the same and the date and time of the edit will appear in the **Entered** column.
- 7. Click **Return** again
- 8. Intervention screen opens with the edit details in magenta until saved.
- 9. Click Save.

If the Cut-Off date has been reached, you will receive a message advising you that it has passed. Select either **Yes** to view or **No** to return to previous screen. A designated user who has access must perform the edit function.

Undo Button:

This function allows for the removal of documentation that has been entered incorrectly. You may only UNDO documentation that you yourself have entered.

- 1. To undo documentation the Undo button on the bottom toolbar must be illuminated
- 2. Highlight the date and time of the documentation that you want to undo.
- 3. Click the Undo
- 4. Reason for Undo will display.
- 5. Select the appropriate reason for the Undo.



- 6. Click OK
- 7. Undo will display in magenta in the Type column
- 8. The original documentation date and time will remain the same, and the date and time of the Undo will appear in the Entered column.
- 9. Click Return
- 10. Intervention screen opens with the Undo details in magenta until saved.
- 11. Click Save.

If the Cut-Off date has been reached, the Undo button will not be illuminated and you will not be able to undo the documentation. A designated user who has access must perform the Undo function.

Next Scheduled:

Intervention	Text/ Ord	Status	Src	Frequency	History	Next Scheduled •	Prtcl	Assoc Data
Comfort Rounds		А	PS	08,10,12,14,		1000 1200		
Shift Care Record		А	PS	07,15,23		1500 2300		

This displays when the Intervention is next due. It shows the time if the Intervention is due today. It shows the Date and Time if the Intervention is due on a future date. When an Intervention has a frequency and the time is past due the field will display in pink. This is a visual cue that an Intervention is overdue.

Protocol:

Intervention	Text/ Ord	Status	Src	Frequency	History	Next Scheduled •	Prtcl	Assoc Data
Goals of Care Designation (GCD)		А	PS				•	
Skin/Integumentary Assessment		А	PS				•	•
Braden Scale	Q	А	PS				•	

If a Protocol has been pre-defined for the Intervention a right facing arrow will appear in the Protocol field.

1. Click on the arrow in the Protocol column to open. It will display information or may refer you to a Policy or Procedure related to that Intervention.





- 2. Click Close when you are finished viewing the information.
- 3. This returns you to your Intervention Worklist screen.

Assoc Data:

This will take you to the associated data screen which is data that has been linked together within Meditech to provide a more complete clinical picture. For example, the Ambulation Assessment intervention might show the previous data that has been documented or, for Pain Management it might show previously documented pain locations.

🆑 EMR Results - N	lurnur Tester				
Udel Pyre, DOB: 6/7/98 16 Ht: 110 cm / W Allergy/AdvR	5 M t: 40 kg = BSA: 1.14 m2 = BMI: 33.1 kg/m2	Nursing	Unit 4W	Main LMHA4W	G00421901-F51 M040-2 ADM IN
	2 Hour 4 Hour 6 Hour 8 Hour 12 Hour 24 Hour				
	Associated Data	11 Nov 08:00 11:59	12 Nov 08:00 11:59	13 Nov 08:00 11:59	
	- Associated Data	104 cm	105	110 (1)	-
	Height Weight	39 kg	105 cm 42 kg	110 cm (+) 40 kg (+)	-
	Hor	ne) Lab Ref O		er Previcol N	Next col Later

Click the **X** in the top right of your screen and this will take you back to the Intervention Screen.

Documenting Interventions

The documenting of Interventions records clinical information on the client's electronic chart. The Toolbars across the bottom of the screen change as you move through the documentation process and give you access to different functions.

Toolbars

Intervention Toolbar:

The toolbar at the bottom of your Intervention screen allows for the following:

Document	Document	Edit	Select	Add	Delete	Undo
Documenc	Spreadsheet	Status	Status	Intervention	Intervention	Document



Document: Opens an assessment made up of queries and response options (see below for response types.) There are two types of Interventions used for documenting: Interventions **with** an Assessment Screen – With this type of Intervention, you are provided with a set of questions called an Assessment. You use the assessment to record information related to the task or Intervention.

Interventions **without** an Assessment Screen – With this type of Intervention, you simply check off that the Intervention has been done. No further information related to the task or intervention is recorded. Otherwise known as an "I did it".

Document Spreadsheet: Allows for documentation of that intervention in spreadsheet format

Edit Status: Allows you to edit the status of that intervention

Select Status: Allows you to see other interventions that may not be Active (ie Inactive, Complete, Stopped, Cancelled etc.). There may be some situations where you wish to see all those interventions that are inactive or have been completed, etc.

Add Intervention: Allows you to add an intervention or SOC directly from the work list.

Delete Intervention: Allows you to delete an intervention, i.e. Duplicate Interventions. Note: This button is only available if you are highlighted on the intervention. It is not available if you have a checkmark in the intervention column.

Undo Document: Allows you to undo entire documentation if errors were made, but displays as such in the permanent record.

Document Toolbar

The documentation toolbar at the bottom of the screen allows for the following:



Recall Values: Pulls the last response for each & every query, no matter when done. **Clear Assessment:** Clears all data entered for this assessment prior to saving the data. After recalling data you may review it then clear the assessment to enter your own. **Insert Occurrence**: Allows the same queries to be answered on more than more body location or behavior within one assessment

Discontinue Occurrence: Allows for the discontinuation of an Occurrence that is no longer needed. An Occurrence can be reactivated at any time, only Active Occurrences will be seen in Document format. Discontinued Occurrences are 'grayed out' in Document Spreadsheet format



View Protocol: When documenting on an assessment if the **View Protocol** button is illuminated, click on the button and this will display the Protocol associated to the Intervention. **Associated data:** Will take you to a screen where related data will display.

Go To: Will illuminate if more than one Intervention or an Intervention Set has been selected.

Types of Responses

Single: One response allowed. Circle in front of the options.

Several: One or more responses allowed (square in front of the options)

Optional: One response allowed but "Other" is one of the choices (A circle allows a free text response)

Text Type: Allows several lines of free text documentation.

Comment Type: Allows for one line of free text documentation.

Note: when entering free text, use sentence case format.

Number: Allows the entry of either a Whole or Decimal number.

Yes/No: Yes/No response only. May be left unanswered if response is No.

Yes/No with Comment: Yes/No but allows for a comment if required.

Date: DD/MM/YY format. If the current date highlighted is correct on the calendar, click OK. To Change the Date: Use the left facing arrow to go back to the correct date

(Day/Month/Year.) Click OK.

Time: 24 hour clock. Use either the key pad that is on the screen or the number pad on your computer to select the time of documentation. Click OK.

Result: A score that is automatically calculated based on your entries to queries. You must answer each question to obtain an accurate score. e.g. Braden Scale Score on the Skin Risk Assessment.

Documenting on a Single Intervention

Documentation may be done in real-time or backdated using fixed time. Interventions automatically open in real time.

- 1. Highlight the Intervention.
- 2. Click on the **Document** button at the bottom toolbar.

DISCHARGE PROPAG	ATION	-
Anticipated Date of Diadrange		
Prior to Admission Assistance Required	Bathing Cooking Cooking Coressing Onessing Nadoging Finances Medications Redic Transportation Shopping Stars	
Prior to Admission Comment		
Services in Place Prior to Admission	Addictions/Nental Health Adult Day Care Community Support Group Energency Alex System Hone Care Neals on Wheels Instruction Transportation	
Other Services in Place Prior to Admission		
Respiratory Equipment at Home	O Yes O No Convent (Wes, please spectry type and vendor)	
Patient Has Regular Interaction and Support	8 Yes Proc	
Regular biteraction and Support		
	List who the patient has interaction with and support from including name, frequency and if they are family, neighbors, friends or volunteers.	



- 3. The Assessment associated with that Intervention will display. Complete relevant documentation. You only need to document data that you completed or observed.
- 4. When complete, click Save
- 5. Some Interventions have **more** than one page. Always check the upper right corner of your screen for additional pages.
 - a. Click the yellow arrow to the Right, to take you to the next page. To return to the previous Page click the yellow arrow pointing to the Left.

	D30014612/14 / D300058249 / ABATVIG00421901-FS1 Nursing Unit 4W Main LMHA4WMD40-2 ADM IN		Targeton.
Document Inpatient Admission		Page 1 of 2	Þ
24 Feb 2015 1008 by Numur Tester	_	Status Board Interventions	0

6. When completed, click Save.

Note: If answering an assessment with no concerns the system will move to the next assessment.

e.g. Cardiovascular System Alterations or Concerns "No", Meditech moves to the next inquiry.

Document on Multiple Interventions

To select several Interventions to document on at one time:

I	4	Goals of Care Designation (GCD)			A	PS	PF	RN		•		
	~	ARO S	creening			A	PS	on adm	ission			
	1000 · ·						1					
	Document Document Spreadsheet		Link Note	Edit Status		ielect tatus	Ad Interve	 Delete Itervention	Undo)		

- 1. Place a checkmark to the left of each Intervention.
- 2. Click **Document** in the bottom toolbar.
- 3. The **Go to** popup screen displays all selected Interventions.



- 4. Click on the Intervention you wish to **Document** on first. The Assessment for that Intervention will display.
- 5. Enter data
- 6. Click **Go to** on the bottom tool bar. View Associated Sign Go to
- 7. Select next Intervention to document and repeat until all Interventions have been documented on.



8. Once all completed select Return

2

9. Interventions that you have documented will display in magenta.

	-					-				
	Goals of Care Designation (GCD)		A	PS	PRN			•		
	Document - 24/02/2015 at 1054 by NURNUR TESTER									
10	0. Click Save.									
	Return Save									

At any time **prior** to saving, you may review/edit or undo the data you entered.

To Review/edit:

۰.

- 1. Highlight the magenta lettering below the Intervention, click again this will display all data that you have just entered.
- 2. Edit as required
- 3. Click Return to take you back to the Intervention screen
- 4. Click Save

To Undo:

- 1. Highlight the magenta lettering.
- 2. Click the undo button in the toolbar at the bottom of your screen.

Recall Values

You have the ability to recall values (documentation) previously entered on an Intervention. For example, Neurological Vital Signs Assessment may recall from Vital Signs Assessment done 1 day ago and the Respiratory Assessment done 6 months ago.

Note: The data that is recalled is the last documented response for each query and may recall from different assessments and time periods.

- 1. Highlight the Intervention
- 2. Select Document from the tool bar
- 3. Select Recall Values from the bottom toolbar of the Document

Important: All recalled documentation must be reviewed for applicability to this documentation period. It is the responsibility of the person documenting to ensure this. Once saved, this documentation is your documentation.

- 4. Carefully review what has been entered and either **edit** or **delete** any information that has changed from the previous documentation that is not applicable to this documentation time period
- 5. For **Several** type queries there may be more than one response that was previously entered and you may need to deselect a response.
- 6. For comment queries you may need to remove any or all Text in that response



- 7. To delete a **Number** response, e.g.: Temperature or Respirations, click the number field and click the back arrow on the pop up keypad as many times as needed to delete the entry.
- 8. Once Documentation is complete, either click **Save** or **Return** and then **Save**.

If all the data that you have recalled is **incorrect**, you may select the **Clear Assessment button.** This will delete all data.

Inserting/Discontinuing Occurrences

This function allows the same queries/question to be answered on more than one body location or behavior within one assessment. For example, a client has two wounds. 1st on Lt. hip and the 2nd Rt. thigh. **Location Modifier** of Left and Right and **Wound Location** of hip and thigh allows for the wounds to be addressed in one Assessment.

- INFUSION LINE LOC	ATION - Occurrence #1
Modifier	Anterior Dorsal Distal Lateral Left Lower Medial Posterior Proximal Right Upper
+ site Location	Arm O Antecubital O Abdomen O Chest Depidural O Femoral O Foot O Hand Jugular Internal O Jugular External O Leg O Scalp Wrist O Scapula O Subclavian O Umbilical Other
→ nfusion Line Type	O Peripheral O Subcutaneous O Epidural O Central Line O PICC Closed-Ended/Valved O PICC Open-Ended/NonValved O PICC Open-Ended/Valved O Direct Percutaneous O Midline O Tunnelled O Implanted Port O Intraosseous O Other O Other O Direct Percutaneous

The arrow next to the item in the assessment indicates it is possible to add multiple occurrences. Each **Occurrence** will have its own section to document on.

You may insert as many occurrences as required under one repeatable label. When choosing **Document**, occurrences that have been added and remain active will display each time that Intervention is opened until the occurrence is discontinued. Any active occurrences do not necessarily have to be documented on each time.

Insert an Occurrence:

- 1. Select the query/question you would like to add an additional occurrence too.
- 2. In the toolbar below, select Insert Occurrence

Recall Clear Link Insert Values Assessment Note Occurren	Discontinue Occurrence	View Protocol	Associated Data	Sign	Go to
---	---------------------------	------------------	--------------------	------	-------

3. A blank assessment will appear with occurrence #2 in the header

🔁 INFUSION LINE LOC	CATION - Occurrence #2
→ Site Location Modifier	Anterior Dorsal Distal Lateral Left Lower Medial Posterior Proximal Right Upper
→ Site Location	O Arm O Antecubital O Abdomen O Chest O Epidural O Femoral O Foot O Hand O Jugular Internal O Jugular External O Leg O Scalp O Wrist O Scapula O Subclavian O Umbilical O Other

4. Complete the assessment as per normal.



Discontinue Occurrence:

- 1. Select the modifier (the descriptor with the arrow pointing to the Right)
- 2. Click **Discontinue Occurrence** on the bottom tool bar.
- 3. The occurrence will immediately be removed from the screen and no longer visible on subsequent documentations in the document format.
- 4. Click Save.

Note: In the Document Spreadsheet format the discontinued occurrence will always be visible and display in gray.

See **Document Spreadsheet** section on Reactivating Discontinued Occurrence

Document Spreadsheet

Spreadsheet documentation is useful for documenting on interventions where viewing the previous information is desired for reference and observing trends. It is also useful if there has been very little change in the questions, as it is possible to copy an entire column over to the current documentation session editing only information that has changed.

Once you highlight the intervention you wish to document by spreadsheet on, Click on **Document Spreadsheet** at the bottom of your screen. The column highlighted in Magenta is where you enter your data. You may **"click and drag"** at the date from the previous documentation to the new date to bring the same data from the previous documentation and then edit the necessary changed information. Alternately, you may **click on each box** and will be provided with the documentation choices assigned to that question.

	20/05/2009	20/05/2009	29/07/2009	25/10/2010	25/10/2010
	Wed 1000	Wed 1519	Wed 1349	Mon 1413	Mon 1415
	PTRNPCS	PTRNPCS	PTRNPCS	PTRNPCS	PTRNPCS
Glucose Meter Test			Freq:	QOD Next sche	ed: 26/10 0700
Time of Glucometer Reading	1000	1400	0730	1000	
Glucose Meter Reading	14.6	12.3	8.3	10.0	
Comment					
Hypoglycemia Symptoms					
Hypoglycemia Treatment					
Hypoglycemia Comment					
Symptoms of Hyperglycemia		None			
S/S Hyperglycemia - Treatment	Insulin - SC	Insulin - SC			
Hyperglycemia Treatment					
Glucose Meter Test Comment					

The following explains the toolbar on the bottom of the Document Spreadsheet display:

Insert Occurrence: Inserts an entire new assessment beside previous, allowing new answers to "keyed queries".



Discontinue Occurrence: Discontinues the Keyed Query information from future documentation occurrences.

Insert Column: Inserts entire new column next to most recent entry.

Delete Column: Deletes entire column prior to filing.

Get Monitor Data: If applicable, gets data automatically from monitors if this technology is present. e.g. Vital signs displayed on ICU monitor

Associated Data: As previous

Edit Options: Copy, Paste, Edit Date/Time, Erase Data

View: View History, View Text and Order, View Protocol

Document on a Single Intervention using Document Spreadsheet:

- 1. Highlight the Intervention on your Intervention list
- 2. Click Document Spreadsheet on the bottom toolbar
- 3. A new column opens at the end of the spreadsheet with the current date and time.
- 4. There are 3 choices for documenting in spreadsheet:
 - a. Click on **blank field**, select response.
 - b. "Drag and drop" individual fields.
 - c. "Drag and drop" entire column.

Document on Multiple Interventions using Document Spreadsheet

- 1. Select several Interventions to document on at one time by placing a checkmark to the left of the Intervention name.
- 2. Click **Documentation Spreadsheet**
- 3. All the Interventions will display in the spreadsheet format.
- 4. Using the scrollbar to the right on your screen, scroll up and down to view each of the Interventions you have chosen.

Once **Document Spreadsheet** has been selected and the new column displays there are 2 Options:

Option #1

- 1. Select the cells or fields that you are documenting on
- 2. A popup screen with the options for that query will display.
- 3. Select the appropriate response
- 4. Click OK.
- 5. Continue until you have completed your documentation
- 6. Click Save



Option #2 - not recommended; high risk for errors

- 1. **Drag and drop** individual fields or an entire column from any previous documentation.
- 2. All copied documentation must be reviewed for applicability for this documentation period.
- 3. Edit any data that has changed from the previous entry or delete any data that is not applicable.

NOTE: if a truncated response (e.g.: well appro...) appears in the field there may be more than one response for that query. Click to view any hidden responses.

To Edit/Delete in Document Spreadsheet

- 1. Highlight the cell
- 2. Previous responses will display in a pop up screen.
- 3. Carefully review what has been entered and deselect any previous response not applicable for this documentation time
- 4. Select the correct response.
- 5. You cannot edit the modifier within an Occurrence; you must insert a new occurrence

Insert Occurrence in spreadsheet

- 1. Select a field or a row within a repeatable label
- 2. Click **Insert Occurrence** in the bottom toolbar (you may have to scroll down to see the added Occurrence.)

Discontinue Occurrence in spreadsheet

- 1. Select the field within the repeatable label you want to discontinue.
- 2. Click **Discontinue Occurrence** on the bottom tool bar.
- 3. The Occurrence will immediately be grayed out.

Note: Once an Occurrence has been inserted, it will **always** display in the current column; however, occurrences that have been discontinued will be grayed out.

Reactivate Occurrence in spreadsheet

- 1. Select the field within the repeatable label you want to reactivate.
- 2. A pop up screen will appear asking if you want to Activate Occurrence?
 - a. If Yes: the occurrence will no longer be grayed out and you may now document.
 - b. If **No**: The area remains grayed out and you cannot document.



Additional Functions

In the upper Left corner of the Spreadsheet there may be arrows (**single and double**) indicating earlier documentation that may be viewed.

- 1. Click the Single arrow to go back one column at a time
- 2. Click the double arrow to go back a page at a time.

Documenting for a Different Time

If you have forgotten to document on an Intervention at the time that the Intervention was done you will have the ability to back date and time up 7 days in the past. This will be recorded in the History of the Intervention. If you need to backdate further than 7 days please speak to your support representative.

1. Above the Intervention list, is the Real Time Window.

		Tue, 24 Fe	ault Tim eb 2019 ur Teste	5 1244				
Intervention	Text/ Ord	Status	Src	Frequency	History 🔻	Next Scheduled	Prtcl	Assoc Data
Vital Signs		А	PS	on admission	140 days			×
Height and Weight		А	PS	on admission	103 days		•	×
Pertinent Information		А	PS		24 hrs			

- 2. Click on the gray area that has **Date**, **Time** and **User name**.
- 3. The **Document Date & Time** popup will display.
- 4. To change the date: click the left arrow until the date that you are documenting for displays.
- 5. To change the time: Use either the key pad that is on the screen or the number pad on your computer to select the time of documentation.
- 6. Click **OK**.
- 7. The real time window will now display the **Fixed Time**. (This is the date and time that you have selected for this documentation).
- 8. Select **Document** or **Document Spreadsheet** from the bottom toolbar and proceed to document.
- 9. When viewing the History: the newly documented Intervention will be placed chronologically in the list.

Process Plan/Care Plan

For information on Care Planning in Meditech 5.67 please see the Care Planning Manual.



Downtime

A provincial downtime process is pending. This manual will be updated once available. For more information please speak to your support representative.

Allergies

For information on Allergies in Meditech 5.67 please see the Allergy Manual.

EMR

For information on EMR in Meditech 5.67 please see the EMR Manual.